



# Health and Safety Policy

This policy sets out The Health and Safety Policy outlines the duties and arrangements for the management of health and safety within the organisation

Key words: Health, Safety, Legislation, Safe

Version: Seven

**Approved by:** Health and Safety Committee

Ratified By: Quality and Safety Committee

Date this version was ratified: May 2025

Date issued for publication: 2 June 2025

Review date: November 2027

Expiry date: May 2028

Type of Policy: Non-clinical

#### **Contents**

#### Contents

Cont	entsents	2
Polic	y On A Page	4
Sumr	mary and Aims	4
KEY	REQUIREMENTS	4
TARG	GET AUDIENCE:	4
TRAI	NING	4
1.0 Q	Quick Look Summary	5
1.1	Version Control	5
1.2	Key individuals involved in developing and consulting on the document	6
1.3	Governance	6
1.4	Equality Statement	6
1.5	Due Regard	6
1.6	Definitions that apply to this policy	6
2.0	Purpose and Introduction	7
3.0	Statement of Intent	7
4.0	Duties within the Organisation	9
4.1	Chief Executive	9
4.2	Executive Director with Delegated responsibility for Health and Safety	9
4.3	Directors and Directorate Directors	10
4.4	Service Managers and Head of Service	11
4.5	Deputy Director Safety and Emergency Planning - NHFT and LPT and Health and Safety	Advisors 12
4.6	Moving and Handling Advisor	13
4.7	Security Management Advisor	14
4.8	Estates and Facilities Specialist Advisors	15
4.9	Fire Safety Assurance Officer	15
4.10	0 Radiation Protection Advisor (External)	15
4.1	1 Pharmacy Advisor	16
4.17	2 Infection Prevention and Control Team	16
4.13	3 Contracted Occupational Health Services Provider	17
4.14	4 Estates and Facilities	17

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

02/06/2025

Status – Final

Title Health and Safety Policy

	4.15	Environmental Health Advisors (External)	18					
	4.16	Procurement	18					
	4.17	Staff Side Representatives	18					
	4.18	Employees	19					
		cases where equipment is provided for the purpose of health and safety, all						
		ponsible for using the equipment in line with manufacturers instruction and ning provided						
5		ganisational Arrangement Structure to Facilitate Health and Safety						
	5.1	Quality and Safety Committee						
	5.2	Executive Team						
	5.3	Health and Safety Committee						
	5.4	Employee Representation						
	5.5	Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action Groups						
	5.6	Policies, Procedures and Guidelines						
	5.7	Local Departmental/Service Policies and Procedures						
	5.8	Training and Information						
6		cident/Incident/Near Miss Information						
7		alth and Safety Responsibilities for Independent Contractors (GPs, Dentists						
P		cists and Opticians and non-healthcare premises)	•					
8	Hos	sted Services Staff and Organisation Staff Providing a Hosted Service	24					
9	The	Health and Safety Policy	24					
	9.1	Revision of the Health and Safety Policy	24					
	9.2	Publicising the Health and Safety Policy	24					
	9.3	Communication with Staff	24					
	9.4	Amendments to Policy	25					
1(	0.0 C	Consent	25					
1	1.0 F	raud, Bribery and Corruption Consideration	25					
A	ppend	lix 1	27					
A	ppend	lix 2 - Committee Membership	33					
A	ppend	lix 3 Public Sector Equality Duty Check List	34					
A	ppend	lix 4 Monitoring and Compliance	35					
A	ppend	lix 5	36					
A	ppendix 6 The NHS Constitution							
A	ppend	lix 7 Due Regard Screening Template	38					
Α	ppend	pendix 8 Data Privacy Impact Assessment Screening						

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

02/06/2025

Appendix 8

#### **Policy On A Page**

#### **Summary and Aims**

What is this policy for?

#### **KEY REQUIREMENTS**

- 1. Staff need to read and familiarise themselves with the policy arrangements.
- 2. Follow risk assessment controls and safe systems of work within their role and area
- 3. Report hazards to their line manager/others and take appropriate action
- 4. Report incidents via the Trust Incident Reporting system (Ulysses)
- 5. Do not tamper/misuse equipment use equipment and wear PPE as instructed
- 6. Take care of themselves and others whilst at work.
- 7. Undertake Health and Safety Training when required to.
- 8. Follow Trust Health and Safety guidance/information to keep them safe whilst at work.

#### **TARGET AUDIENCE:**

All Staff

#### **TRAINING**

Introduction to Health and Safety

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

#### 1.0 Quick Look Summary

This document sets out the arrangements for health and safety management, determines the levels of responsibility at all levels and the channels of communication for health and safety. Whilst the Trust accepts the main responsibilities for the implementation of the policy, employees have a very important and legal role in cooperating with the Trust to ensure a healthy and safe working environment. Non-compliance by any member of the Trusts management or staff with any of the statutory regulations or the local safety policies and procedures laid down by the Trust, may result in disciplinary action being taken, and possible legal action.

#### 1.1 Version Control

Version number	Date	Comments (description change and amendments)
V1	April 2011	Harmonisation of three former Trusts policies
V2	March 2012	Revised following restructuring of the Trust and appointment to posts
V3	March 2013	Health, Safety and Security Manager amended to Head of Trust Health and Safety Compliance throughout Others as highlighted to be listed once agreed
V3.1	March 2014	Expiry date extended to allow full consultation
V4	May 2016	Reference to Division/al replaced with Directorate Terms of Reference Updated Section 9 – Associated Documents updated to reflect current policy list and
V5	February 2019	Updated. Amended to reference NHS Long Term Plan Inclusion of Privacy Impact Assessment
V6	March 2022	3 yearly review including changes to roles.
V7	March 2025	Reference to Health and Safety Compliance Team changed to Safety and EPRR throughout Terms of reference updated

For further information contact:

Lpt.healthandsafety@nhs.net

#### 1.2 Key individuals involved in developing and consulting on the document

lan Cromarty, Deputy Director Safety and Emergency Planning -NHFT and LPT Jamie Slade, Shared Head of Safety – LPT and NHFT Christian Knott, Health and Safety Advisor Policy Expert Group

#### 1.3 Governance

Level 2: Health and Safety Committee Level 1 Committee to ratify policy – Quality and Safety Committee

#### 1.4 Equality Statement

Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust (LPT) aims to design and implement policy documents that meet the diverse needs of our service, population and workforce, ensuring that none are placed at a disadvantage over others. It takes into account the provisions of the Equality Act 2010 and promotes equal opportunities for all. This document has been assessed to ensure that no one receives less favourable treatment on the protected characteristics of their age, disability, sex (gender), gender reassignment, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity.

If you would like a copy of this document in any other format, please contact <a href="mailto:lpt.corporateaffairs@nhs.net">lpt.corporateaffairs@nhs.net</a>

#### 1.5 Due Regard

LPT will ensure that due regard for equality is taken and as such will undertake an analysis of equality (assessment of impact) on existing and new policies in line with the Equality Act 2010. This process will help to ensure that:

- Strategies, policies and procedures and services are free from discrimination.
- LPT complies with current equality legislation.
- Due regard is given to equality in decision making and subsequent processes.
- Opportunities for promoting equality are identified.

Please refer to due regard assessment (Appendix 5) of this policy

#### 1.6 Definitions that apply to this policy

**Consent:** a patient's agreement for a health professional to provide care. Patients may indicate consent non-verbally (for example by presenting their arm for their pulse to be taken), orally, or in writing. For the consent to be valid, the patient must:

- be competent to take the particular decision;
- have received sufficient information to take it and not be acting under duress.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

**Due Regard:** Having due regard for advancing equality involves:

- Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected characteristics.
- Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are different from the needs of other people. Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other activities where their participation is disproportionately low.

#### 2.0 Purpose and Introduction

The Health and Safety Policy applies to all staff employed by Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust to be referred to throughout as 'the Trust'.

#### 3.0 Statement of Intent

The Trust attaches the greatest importance to the health, safety and welfare of its employees and others affected by its undertakings, and accepts fully its duties and responsibilities under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, and the Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999.

The Board recognises that all matters of health, safety and welfare are essential factors and must be integrated within all corporate and management decisions. Patient care, health, safety, environmental considerations and business objectives are mutually dependent. The objective is to develop and promote a positive and effective health and safety culture throughout the Trust. Joint consultation will take place between management and staff on all health and safety related issues. Particular attention will be paid to the following:-

- A safe place of work, with safe access and egress;
- A healthy working environment, without risks to health;
- Provision of adequate welfare facilities;
- Provision of sufficient training, instruction, supervision and information to enable all employees to contribute positively to their own safety and health at work, and to avoid hazards and control risks;
- Ensuring plant and equipment are safe;
- Ensuring that safe systems of work are set and followed:
- Safe arrangements for the use, handling, storage and transport of articles, materials and substances are in place.

The Trust will work closely with other organisations/stakeholders to ensure that the health and safety of all staff is properly addressed. This policy will apply to all staff.(substantive, bank and agency).

To ensure that the objectives of the Trust are progressed and achieved, the safety performance of the Trust will be regularly monitored, audited and reviewed, making sure This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

that arrangements for implementing a positive safety culture are reflected within all policies and procedures.

The Trust recognises that people are our most important resource, and therefore will invest in that resource by providing managers and all staff with appropriate health and safety training.

Employees have a legal obligation to do everything possible to avoid harm both to themselves and others and, therefore, the successful implementation of the Health and Safety Policy requires total commitment from all levels of the Trust. The Trust endorses the need for managers and staff to work positively together to achieve a situation compatible with the provision of high quality services to patients and clients, where the risk of personal injury and hazards to the health of staff and others can be reduced to a minimum. Thus risk must be assessed and significant findings recorded.

The Trust is committed to a fair and open culture. This means that staff should not feel afraid of reporting their concerns so that action can be taken and lessons learnt. This policy statement is a general Statement of Intent. The Trust recognises the importance of ensuring that this policy is implemented, monitored and revised as necessary, in the light of legislative or organisational changes.

In view of the wide-ranging requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act (1974), subsequent regulations and Approved Codes of Practice and Guidance issued under the Act, the Trust will issue individual policies and procedures reflecting those requirements. In addition these policies and procedures will assist the Trust in compliance with the relevant areas of the Care Quality Commission Fundamental Standards.

These policies will be developed and agreed by the Trust Health and Safety Committee and forwarded to the Quality Assurance Committee for adoption. Directors will be responsible for issue and implementation of policies and procedures within their area of responsibility.

Access to all relevant policies and procedures will be easily available within each department via the Trust intranet, allowing free access to all employees and available to other stakeholders who wish to view them.

The Trust Health and Safety Committee will be responsible for maintaining an up-to-date schedule of health and safety polices and procedures and will ensure that the Trust intranet is updated with current policies and procedures. The Committee will be responsible for monitoring and reviewing policies taking into account changes in statutory requirements and operational practice.

#### 4.0 Duties within the Organisation

Everyone is responsible for the health and safety of everyone else at work. We all have a legal duty of care under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, to ensure the safety of others, including colleagues, patients, visitors, contractors and others affected by our work, including the local community.

In order to comply with this duty of care, all staff must be aware of the lines of communication and levels of responsibility, which exist to ensure that matters of health, safety and welfare can be dealt with adequately.

Safety management legislation (Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999) clearly puts the responsibility for safety not just with the employer, but also with managers.

In order to ensure that health and safety is successfully managed the following organisational responsibilities have been allocated:

#### 4.1 Chief Executive

The Chief Executive has overall responsibility for all matters of health, safety and welfare. This responsibility includes ensuring that health and safety matters are seen as an important priority for the Trust which is addressed through comprehensive policies and procedures that are effectively implemented and appropriately resourced within the overall financial position of the Trust.

The Chief Executive will ensure that financial resources are made available to support this Policy based upon a risk assessment of priorities. The Chief Executive is responsible for appointing a nominated Executive Director with delegated responsibility for Health and Safety.

The Chief Executive will ensure that a legally constituted Health and Safety Committee is established under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (Section2/7) and in accordance with the Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977.

In addition, each member of the respective boards have an individual role in providing health and safety leadership, and ensuring that all Board decisions reflect the intentions outlined in the Health and Safety Policy 'Statement of Intent'.

#### 4.2 Executive Director with Delegated responsibility for Health and Safety

The appointed Director with delegated responsibility for Health and Safety will oversee all Health and Safety related matters. They will:

- Chair the Health and Safety Committee.
- Ensure that rigorous monitoring procedures are in place at all levels of the Trust to provide assurance of health and safety compliance

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

• Discharge the Trusts duty in accordance within the legal requirements

As Chair of the Health and Safety Committee the Director with responsibility for Health and Safety will:

- Ensure that the Trust has a policy on Health and Safety, which gives a clear unequivocal commitment to safety, and sets out the framework for improving health and safety performance, and reducing accidents, incidents and work- related illhealth to a minimum.
- Ensure that communication systems are in place to enable the policy to be brought to the attention of all staff and that it has the support of the LPT Staff Partnership Forum (LPT SPF)
- Ensure that the objectives of the policy are fully understood, implemented and supported by all Directors, Managers and Supervisors.
- Ensure that rigorous monitoring procedures are in place at all levels of the Trust to facilitate the effective implementation of the policy.
- Ensure that the policy is reviewed regularly by the Health and Safety Committee for approval.
- Ensure that an Annual Programme and Action Plan of priorities is drawn-up by the Health and Safety Committee for approval.
- Ensure compliance with the policy

In the absence of the Chair the Deputy Director Safety and Emergency Planning - NHFT and LPT will assume Chair of the committee.

#### 4.3 Directors and Directorate Directors

Each Director and Directorate Director is responsible for ensuring that the Trusts Health and Safety Policy is implemented. They will also:

- Have responsibility for all matters of health, safety and welfare within their Directorate
- Be individually responsible for ensuring the introduction of health and safety initiatives, which will facilitate the implementation of the Health and Safety Policy
- Ensure the implementation of a process for dealing with the assessment of all risks, and the control and monitoring of significant risks
- Ensure that contracts of employment and job descriptions detail specific health and safety responsibilities of the employee and that health and safety performance is part of the formal appraisal system for staff
- Ensure that the formal appraisal system for all staff incorporates the setting of health and safety objectives, which are specific, clear, measurable and measured, and that this system identifies health and safety training needs
- Provide details of health and safety arrangements within their area of responsibility to the Health and Safety Committee
- Ensure all staff in their area of responsibility are aware of their responsibilities, delegated duties and lines of communication in respect of health and safety

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

#### 4.4 Service Managers and Head of Service

Service Managers and Heads of Service are responsible for the health, safety and welfare of the staff and clients whom they supervise, and all users of the workplaces for, which they are responsible and/or control.

They must maintain close liaison with their staff in safety matters and they are responsible, in particular for the following:

- Supporting the planned programme in place to carry out regular safety support and walkthrough visits in the workplace, or delegate as appropriate, and maintaining records and implementing action plans accordingly
- Ensuring the implementation within their own area of any safety policies or procedures approved by the Trust, and that they are brought to the attention of, and made available to, staff, contractors and visitors within the area, for example, fire procedures
- Ensuring that appropriate warning notices and all instructions are prominently displayed
- Ensuring that the services within their control provide a healthy and safe working environment
- Ensuring that any changes to the environment are assessed in consultation with the specialist adviser(s)
- Ensuring that there is a system in place for ensuring staff attendance and completion of mandatory training
- Ensuring that reports from the Health and Safety Executive, the Trusts Health and Safety Committee and similar sources receive prompt attention and appropriate action
- Ensuring that there is a system in place for the prompt reporting and repair of faulty equipment, plant or buildings. Unsafe equipment must be taken out of use immediately, marked DO NOT USE and removed to a secure location to prevent accidental use
- Ensuring that adequately trained persons are identified and available within each department/area to support the application of Health and Safety legislation and Trust policies/procedures
- Ensuring that individual Job Descriptions reflect the level of responsibility in relation to health and safety
- Liaising with Staff Safety Representatives in accordance with agreed procedures
- Ensuring the reporting of accidents, incidents, work-related illnesses and near misses, in accordance with Trusts procedures, and ensuring that the sharing of lessons learned takes place
- Ensuring that investigations are carried out to determine the causation factors and take any remedial actions, and, where necessary, escalate as appropriate
- Ensuring that all appropriate health and safety equipment, protective clothing etc is always available, properly maintained and used, and where necessary staff are appropriately trained
- Ensuring that equipment used in the department/area is safe and adequate for the purpose for which it is intended

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- Taking immediate steps to investigate and rectify any new risks to health and safety arising from work activity
- Bringing to the prompt attention of senior management any health and safety issues that require further action
- Maintaining safe patterns and methods of working by staff, including access and egress
- Ensuring the adequate induction of all new staff emphasising the health, safety and welfare aspect of their duties
- Ensuring that departmental policies, procedures and assessments are in line with overall Directorate and Trusts policies and procedures
- Ensuring health and safety training needs for staff are identified within the Personal Development Plan process
- Monitoring staff attendance at agreed training sessions.
- Ensuring that contractors working on Trust premises comply with the working regulations, which will be made available and clear to them when they tender for work. They must conform to the Trusts safety standards, which will include the employment of competently trained personnel and ensuring that they meet their statutory obligations
- Ensuring that risk assessments are undertaken for all activities, and that staff
  conducting these risk assessments are suitably trained in the process, and are able
  to use action plans that result from risk assessments to form health and safety
  objectives. Appropriate documentation of such risk assessments should be kept
- Ensuring that staff are made aware of the hazards connected with their work and how to safeguard themselves
- Keeping up-to-date with developments in their field of work relating to health and safety, and responding to change as necessary
- Ensuring that effective communications to staff on safe working practices are in place. To receive suggestions from staff for improvements in health and safety, seeking to encourage active participation by staff on all health, safety and welfarerelated issues.

# **4.5 Deputy Director Safety and Emergency Planning - NHFT and LPT and Health and Safety Advisors**

The Trust will employ Health and Safety Advisors to act as its Competent Persons in respect of matters of health, safety and welfare, they will:

- Provide advisory support to the Board, Chief Executive, all executive directors, managers and their staff on matters relating to health and safety in order to develop a culture whereby health and safety management is an integral part of the performance management processes
- Fulfil the role of competent person on health and safety matters within the Trust
- Co-ordinate and advise on the implications of health and safety legislation for all staff as required
- Report to the Health and Safety Committee any actions taken by enforcement agencies, both formal and informal, and monitor progress made by the Trust in complying with legislation, statutory requirements.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- Regularly consult with relevant officers, together with other relevant professional advisors and statutory bodies, with a view to obtaining and implementing updated information/innovation on all aspects of health and safety, in so far as it applies to employees and all users of Trusts services
- Co-ordinate and monitor the arrangements for health and safety throughout the Trust
- Investigate/monitor non-clinical accidents/incidents within Trust property, or where Trust staff or clients/patients are involved, recommending follow up action where appropriate
- Liaise with contractors and agencies used by the Trust, to ensure they have relevant health and safety policies and procedures in place
- Promote the requirement for adequate arrangements for identifying staff's health and safety training needs to be in place, and that appropriate safety training is provided at all levels
- Develop and circulate information sheets informing all relevant employees of the Trust of any changes to health and safety
- Attend sub-groups of the Health and Safety Committee.
- Advise upon, and contribute to the development and production of polices and procedures, in accordance with current legislation, regional and national policy etc
- In conjunction with Directors and managers, be responsible for the monitoring of all health and safety issues throughout the Trust, ensuring that effective strategies and monitoring regimes are introduced where necessary
- Undertake risk assessments, health and safety audits/ safety support visits, promote safe systems of work and safe working practices, with the aim of developing a positive safety culture within the Trust
- Review and monitor Health and Safety risks, ensuring that the Health and Safety Committee is informed of, and where necessary, consulted, on all significant risks and associated action plans
- Manage the systems incorporating health and safety, environmental and occupational health monitoring in conjunction with HR and Organisational Development
- Plan, prepare, conduct and evaluate diverse and complex health and safety audits and surveys across the Trust in order to inform the risk profile of the Trust's undertakings. Providing reports and information to the Health and Safety Committee
- Liaise and consult with third party enforcing authorities e.g. Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and matters of statutory compliance

#### 4.6 Moving and Handling Advisor

The Moving and Handling Advisor will act in an advisory capacity for Directors, Managers and Employees of the Trust. The main duties of the Moving and Handling Advisor are to:

- Advise the Trust on any significant changes in legislation and guidance relevant to manual handling
- Regularly revise and continually develop the manual handling education programme for all employees and ensure compliance with current best practice and legislation
- Co-ordinate and support the Manual Handling Key Workers

- Maintain a core of Manual Handling Key Workers in clinical areas
- Chair the Manual Handling Steering Group, ensuring that it functions effectively and achieves its purpose.
- Co-ordinate audits of ward/department manual handling equipment and report deficiencies to the ward/department manager, Health and Safety Committee and other groups as identified.
- Perform audit on manual handling risk assessments with findings and action plan to be reported to the Health and Safety Committee
- Advise staff and departments on appropriate equipment needs and provision.
- Investigate manual handling accidents/incidents and analyse patterns of occurrence
- Work with managers to identify and plan strategies for the reduction of risks within their workplace and to identify training requirements.
- Network with other professionals and coordinators, within the region, to collate and disseminate examples of good practice.
- Formulate and develop policies, protocols, procedures and guidelines relating to manual handling and to continually monitor, review and audit their effectiveness.
- Advise Matrons, Ward or Department Managers in regards to the safe handling of bariatric / heavy patients.
- Attend Health and Safety Committee meetings
- Provide a quarterly and annual manual handling report to the Health and Safety Committee
- Advises on new innovation that promotes or reduces risk within healthcare

#### 4.7 Security Management Advisor

- Leads on day-to-day work in the Trust to tackle violence against staff and professionals in accordance with the NHS Violence Prevention and Reduction Standards
- Attend the Trust's Health and Safety Committee meetings so that security-related issues are an integral part of Trust management
- Ensure appropriate steps are taken to create a pro-security culture within the Trust and among contractors so that staff and patients accept responsibility for this issue and ensure that, where security incidents/ breaches occur they are detected and reported
- Ensures appropriate security incidents/breaches are publicised so that a deterrent effect can be created
- Promote lessons learnt from security incidents/breaches across the Trust so that appropriate preventative measures can be developed
- Ensured security incidents are reported using the Eirf reporting system, ensuring investigations take place, where appropriate, risks are assessed and preventative measures are developed
- Ensures security incidents/breaches are investigated in a fair, objective and professional manner so that the appropriate sanctions are applied and measures are put in place to prevent recurrence
- Formulates security alerts
- Produces crime reduction and security surveys and report to the Health and Safety Committee on findings, based on prioritised risk ratings and relevant to specific

areas

- Considers cases not progressed by the police or Crown Prosecution Service and where appropriate, in order to seek redress, where appropriate.
- Advises senior management on the potential for private civil or criminal legal action

#### 4.8 Estates and Facilities Specialist Advisors

Professional advice, guidance and support is available both through the services of in house and external service providers. All Specialist Advisors are competent within their field of expertise and can be contacted via Estates and Facilities e.g. Authorised Engineers or approved persons for water, waste gas.

#### 4.9 Fire Safety Assurance Officer

- Formulates and develops policies, procedures and guidance, to ensure that the Trust complies with legislation and statutory requirements.
- Advises on plans for new buildings or major refurbishment to existing buildings.
- To ensure compliance with Firecode and all other legislation related to fire safety management within Trust properties
- Manages, monitors and provides assurance for delivery of fire risk assessments in line with NHS guidance; monitor and report on the implementation of the Fire Risk Assessments.
- Liaises with the Fire Authority as required.
- Manages and monitors training at all levels throughout the Trust, ensuring training records are held within the Trusts uLearn system.
- Investigates fire incidents, where appropriate, and submit a report with an action plan to the Deputy Director Safety and Emergency Planning -NHFT and LPT
- appropriate managers, Directors or Chief Executive.
- Monitors false alarms and works with managers to reduce the number of such incidents, in line with current national guidance.
- Provides quarterly fire reports and an Annual Report to the Health and Safety Committee.
- Attends, or ensures appropriate representation, at the Health and Safety Committee meetings.
- Advises on new innovation that promotes or reduces risk within healthcare

#### 4.10 Radiation Protection Advisor (External)

- Advise on plans for installation and the acceptance into service of new or modified sources of ionising radiation in relation to any engineering controls, design features, safety features and warning devices provided to restrict exposure to ionising radiation
- Advise on the periodic examination and testing of engineering controls, design features, safety features and warning devices, and regular checking of systems of work, including any written arrangements provided to restrict exposure to ionising radiation
- Advise on compliance with the Ionising Radiation Regulations 2017 and the Ionising This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- Radiation (Medical Exposure) Regulations 2000
- Advise on the performance of risk assessments and contingency planning
- Advise on the form of content of local rules for each designated controlled or supervised area
- Advise on the conduct of investigations and subsequent reports as necessary
- Advise on staff training.

#### 4.11 Pharmacy Advisor

- Advise the Trust on areas of potential risk in relation to the prescribing, storage, administration and disposal of medicines.
- Advise managers to ensure that statutory obligations and local guidelines in the management of medicines are met.
- Draft, in collaboration with others, amendments to the Leicestershire Medicines Code covering the management of medicines in situations not previously encountered.
- Receive and, where necessary, investigate reported medicine related incidents.
- Audit the medicines management section of the Care Quality Commission, Monitor and Action for Compliance.

(see Trust Policy for Medicines Management for full details)

#### 4.12 Infection Prevention and Control Team

- Develops and delivers infection prevention and control advice to the Trust, fulfilling the role of competent person on all infection prevention and control matters.
- Participates in the development, implementation and monitoring of infection prevention and control standards, policies and protocols.
- Works with all staff in the prevention, investigation and control of infection, both notifiable and non-notifiable.
- In the event of an increased outbreak, works in collaboration with, NHS England and NHS England (NHSE) and UK Health Security Agency's (UKHSA) participating in the management, investigation and containment of the incident, whether deemed a minor or major incident.
- Participates in the development and implementation of audits to monitor standards in practice.
- Participates in the collection and review of surveillance data.
- Develops, delivers and evaluates infection control educational programmes.
- Maintains and develop the Infection Prevention and Control Champion Professional network.
- Attend Health and Safety Committee meetings.
- Advises on plans for new buildings or major refurbishment to existing buildings
- Undertakes the investigation of Infection Prevention and Control incidents within the Trust recommending follow up action where appropriate

#### 4.13 Contracted Occupational Health Services Provider

- Reports through a contractual arrangement via HR and Organisational Development
- Advises the Trusts managers in the assessment and management of risks where staff's fitness for work and staff's health is concerned
- Undertakes pre-employment assessment as required
- Undertakes post-employment health check and health education
- Assess staff members fitness to return to work after an accident or illness
- Recommends suitable adaptation of workplaces or duties
- Assists in the control of infection by specific screening and immunisation for staff
- Conducts periodic appropriate health surveillance services, e.g. lung function tests
- Liaises with the Health and Safety Advisor and Human Resources in providing training and in maintaining records
- Attends meetings of the Health and Safety Committee and other working groups
- Provides an annual report to the Health and Safety Committee

#### 4.14 Estates and Facilities

The Associate Director of Estates and Facilities is responsible for:

- Reports to the Health and Safety Committee and gives assurance of statutory compliance for estates and facilities across the Trust
- The Capital and Estates and Medical Devices Groups and work there of
- The safety of all Trust estate, including engineering plant and equipment and building fabrics
- Monitoring that all contractors satisfy health and safety requirements under their statutory obligations and providing health and safety information to visiting contractor staff
- Producing and implementing an effective planned preventative maintenance (PPM) programme for the Trust that meets all legislative requirements
- Securing the Trust's compliance with the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations 2015.
- Ensuring that suitable permit to work systems are in place.
- Ensure compliance with associated Health Care Technical Memorandum (HTM)
- Responsible for the safe disposal of waste, including clinical waste and other special waste Trust wide.
- Liaising with the Safety and EPRR Team on issues below with regards to health and safety and give assurance on how these will be managed
- Property Matters
- Capital Developments
- Minor Improvement Works
- Statutory Standards
- Facilities Management
- Estates Maintenance

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- Quality Standards
- Estates Policies and Procedures
- Reporting to the Health and Safety Committee of any health and safety and non- compliance concerns or issues for information or escalation

#### 4.15 Environmental Health Advisors (External)

- Provides food hygiene information and an advisory service to the Trust via Estates and Facilities, to help ensure that the Trust is fully informed of relevant legislation and technical developments in the field on food safety.
- Assists the Trust managers to formulate policies on food hygiene and related issues, and assist in implementation.
- Conducts food safety audits and inspections of all food-handling areas within the
  Trust and provide written reports on the status of these areas, making appropriate
  recommendations to Trust managers and their staff to ensure compliance with food
  hygiene legislation.
- Assists managers to prioritise action on matters arising from audits and inspections, and monitor responses.
- Provides, by negotiation, food hygiene training within the Trust.
- Monitors standards of food hygiene within the Trusts main food supplier and provide written reports on this activity.

#### 4.16 Procurement

- Provides a specialist source of advice to the Trust and its employees on meeting the legal framework for public procurement
- Where non-compliance is recognised the appropriate line manager will be informed
- Where possible ensure that equipment and supplies purchased are in line with local policy as appropriate
- Incorporates in relevant tender documentation issued by LPT, questions relating to health and safety arrangements, policies and procedures that must be complied with
- Works with the Trust, employees and agencies including the NHS Supply Chain to obtain information on products to assist the Trust in reducing costs and improve quality and safety in goods and services procured

#### 4.17 Staff Side Representatives

Safety Representatives will be recognised in line with Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977, as amended and The Health and Safety (Consultation with Employees) 1996 as amended.

The Trust encourages in addition to the specialist advisors the involvement of Staff Side Safety Representatives who:

Keep themselves informed of the legal requirements relating to the health and safety

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- of the people they represent, the particular hazards of their workplace and the health, safety and welfare at work policy of the Trust.
- Encourage co-operation between the Trust and its staff, promoting and developing essential measures to ensure the health and safety of staff.
- Participate in the undertaking and implementation of health and safety inspections.
- Bring to the attention of managers any unsafe or unhealthy conditions or working practices that have a health and safety implication
- Safety representatives are given time off to allow them to complete their Health and Safety duties
- Staff side are integral to the quoracy and functionality of the Health and Safety Committee

#### 4.18 Employees

All staff have a responsibility to co-operate fully with their supervisors and managers to ensure that the Trust, as their employer, can carry out its responsibilities under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974. All employees have a legal duty of care to others. Regardless of the position held within the Trust all staff must: -

- Take reasonable care for their own health and safety and the safety of others who
  may be affected by their actions or omissions
- Co-operate with each other and work in accordance with any policies, procedures, regulations, codes of practice and information or training provided
- Refrain from intentionally misusing or recklessly interfering with anything that has been specifically provided for health, safety and welfare purposes
- Report any hazardous defects in plant, equipment (including personal protective equipment) or premises, or shortcomings in existing safety arrangements or procedures, to a responsible person without delay
  - In cases where equipment is provided for the purpose of health and safety, all staff are responsible for using the equipment in line with manufacturers instruction and/or training provided
- Not undertake any task for which necessary authorisation and/or training has not been received
- Ensure personal health and safety training needs are identified within the Personal Development Plan process
- Take responsibility for attending and participating agreed training sessions about health and safety as requested by their manager or supervisor
- Report any accidents, incidents, near misses or work related illnesses in accordance with Trust procedures
- Participate in training sessions about health and safety as requested by their manager or supervisor
- Be aware of risk assessment processes and adhere to controls and safe systems of work that apply to their area of work.

# 5 Organisational Arrangement Structure to Facilitate Health and Safety

#### 5.1 Quality and Safety Committee

The Quality and Safety Committee is responsible for supporting the adoption of all health and safety policies and procedures for the Trust and will inform the Trusts Board on urgent health and safety issues.

#### 5.2 Executive Team

The Executive Team will receive an exception report post Health and Safety Committee meeting of any issues or to highlight any requirements for further action or communication within the Trust. They will ensure these actions are communicated and addressed operationally.

#### 5.3 Health and Safety Committee

The Committee is constituted under the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 (Section 2/7) and in accordance with the Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977 as amended.

The key function of the Committee is to establish and maintain standards of health, safety and welfare, by developing, approving and monitoring organisational health and safety policies and procedures, and working to an annual action plan. The group aims to promote a culture of understanding and co-operation across the Trust to ensure the health, safety and welfare of all staff, patients and visitors.

The Health and Safety Committee is the overarching Committee for the Trust. Under the Committee is a structure of sub-groups which are either locally or profession based. The Chairs of the sub-groups sit on the main committee, ensuring effective communication throughout the Trust. Minutes from the sub-groups are reported at the Health and Safety Committee meetings.

The Committee is chaired by the Director who has delegated responsibility for health and safety.

The Terms of Reference for the Trusts Health and Safety Committee can be found at Appendix 1 of this policy document.

#### 5.4 Employee Representation

The organisation has two agreements with Staff Side:

- Trade Union and Professional Organisation Recognition Agreement;
- Facilities and time off for Accredited Representatives and Members of Trade Unions and Professional organisations.

These two agreements encourage and support the involvement of recognised Staff Side Safety Representatives in all appropriate health and safety activities within the Trust.

The appointment of employee representatives (as defined by the Health and Safety (Consultation with Employees) Regulations1996) as amended shall be recognised by the Trust, so that in each department the promotion and resolution of relevant health, safety and welfare issues can be addressed and resolved.

#### 5.5 Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action Groups

Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action Groups cover all staff employed by the Trust.

The key function of the groups is to ensure that local services comply with statutory and trustwide health and safety policies and procedures. Whilst the group takes direction from the Trust Health and Safety Committee on priorities for action, they remain accountable via local management structures.

They will seek assurance of compliance with health and safety legislation, standards and Trust policies and monitor action plans that identify gaps in assurance. They will in turn provide this assurance to the main Trust Health and Safety Committee.

The groups are chaired by a manager within the service who must be a member of the Trust Health and Safety Committee and membership includes local operational managers and Staff Side Safety Representatives. Members must be able to demonstrate a clear understanding of health and safety issues and will have attended either the Trusts Managers/Leaders Introduction to Health and Safety One Day Course or the IOSH Managing Safely Course within a two-year time frame of becoming a group member.

The Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action Groups will provide a bi-monthly highlight report to the Health and Safety Committee of health and safety issues pertinent to their activities and environment.

#### 5.6 Policies, Procedures and Guidelines

In view of the wide-ranging requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, subsequent Regulations, Approved Codes of Practice and Guidance issued under the Act, the Trust will issue individual policies and procedures reflecting those requirements.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

The policies will be developed and agreed by the Health and Safety Committee and adopted for implementation by the Quality and Safety Committee.

All relevant policies and procedures are available with free access to all employees and others wishing to view them.

The Health and Safety Committee will be responsible for maintaining an up-to-date schedule of health and safety policies and procedures, and will be responsible for monitoring and reviewing policies, taking into account changes in statutory requirements and operational practice.

A list of other related health and safety procedures and guidelines can be found on the Leicestershire Partnership NHS Trust intranet site.

#### 5.7 Local Departmental/Service Policies and Procedures

At a local level, procedures (safe systems of work) are developed for activities / tasks / treatments undertaken within that area. These are detailed documents on which staff will require training.

Each manager or department head is responsible for implementing safe systems of work within their own work or service. This is to be based on suitable and sufficient risk assessments.

All policies and procedures relating to health and safety should be supported by the Security and EPRR Team.

All service/department documented health and safety information, policies, safe systems of work (procedures/guidelines) must be drawn to the attention of, and made available to all employees working in the department. Arrangements must be made for the procedures to be continually audited and regularly reviewed and updated when work practices change, such as following an incident/accident.

#### 5.8 Training and Information

The training of all staff is an essential element of any successful health and safety strategy.

The information, instruction and training of employees is a fundamental part of providing a safe working environment. Training will be provided at the start of employment (induction) and then on a regular basis throughout employment within the Trust. This continual training programme is to ensure high standards of safety are maintained for the benefit of staff and the general public.

Where health and safety training is required by legislation, it is termed statutory/mandatory in the Trusts documentation.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

Other elements of health and safety training are considered to be role essential and vary from one service to another depending on the risks to staff.

Training is organised at two levels: at a Trustwide level for all staff to access and at a local, more job specific level. Health and safety training that will be provided locally will include, for example, use of work equipment, emergency procedures, Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) and use of personal protective equipment (PPE).

Training should, where possible, involve practical instruction where the trainer demonstrates or explains how to carry out a particular procedure. To support training employees should be provided with written information to be used as a reference at a future date.

All training provided to staff is recorded and evidence kept that training has taken place.

#### 6 Accident/Incident/Near Miss Information

Any accident, incident or near miss must be recorded, investigated and communicated in accordance with the Trust's Incident Reporting Policy.

In the event of a contractor or temporary staff member having an accident on Trust property, the employer of that person should be informed and their specific company accident form completed with a copy sent to the Trust Health and Safety Advisor(s) for further action if necessary.

NB: This does not negate the needs to follow the Trust's incident reporting policy.

# 7 Health and Safety Responsibilities for Independent Contractors (GPs, Dentists, Pharmacists and Opticians and non-healthcare premises)

The independent contractor, as an employer, is responsible for the health, safety and welfare of their staff at work. Thus all employers are required to adhere to health and safety law.

An independent contractor employing five or more staff is required to have a health and safety policy for their staff – a sample suggested framework is available from the HSE (www.hse.gov.uk). A GP practice/non-healthcare premises will probably have a range of local health and safety policies and procedures, which the Trust staff working on those premises should be made aware of.

The Trust still has a responsibility for the health and safety of their staff working in GP/non-healthcare premises. The manager of these staff needs to carry out a risk assessment of the activities undertaken by particular staff on those premises, to ensure that these staff

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

are not exposed to significant risks. Significant risks will need to be discussed with the practice manager so as to resolve the problem. If additional advice is required, it is available from the Safety and EPRR Team.

# 8 Hosted Services Staff and Organisation Staff Providing a Hosted Service

Staff working on non-organisation sites and employees from another organisation working on Trust sites:-

All employees follow the health and safety policies of their employer organisation regardless of where the workplace happens to be. However, at local level there will be local policies and procedures relating specifically to that workplace which all staff working at that location will be expected to follow e.g. fire, security, lone working. In such instances there needs to be clear co-operation and communication to ensure that the health and safety matters are addressed effectively. These will be addressed via a local induction/orientation process.

#### 9 The Health and Safety Policy

#### 9.1 Revision of the Health and Safety Policy

This policy will be reviewed every three years, or where there has been a significant change in health and safety law, where the policy is believed to be no longer valid, or at the request of safety representatives or management.

#### 9.2 Publicising the Health and Safety Policy

The Health and Safety Policy will be document within the Trust policy library, as will the health and safety procedures and guidelines. This information will also be available electronically on the organisation's Intranet site.

#### 9.3 Communication with Staff

The organisation will ensure that suitable and relevant information relating to health, safety and welfare in the workplace is disseminated to staff and Trust users. Statutory notices will be displayed throughout the workplace. Consultation and communication over health and safety issues is to be encouraged at all levels within the organisation.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

02/06/2025

Status - Final

Title Health and Safety Policy

#### 9.4 Amendments to Policy

The Health and Safety Committee will monitor the effectiveness of health and safety policies and procedures implemented within the Trust, in order to ensure legal compliance.

To facilitate this, managers at all levels are responsible for the ongoing monitoring of health and safety in their service/department/area of responsibility. Health and Safety safety support and walkthrough visits will be reported through the appropriate channels and records of these will be kept either at a local level or centrally.

Safety and EPRR Team will work against annual plan, using key performance indicators developed within the Trust and this will be used as a basis for monitoring health and safety performance.

#### 10.0 Consent

Clinical staff must ensure that consent has been sought and obtained before any care, intervention or treatment described in this policy is delivered. Consent can be given orally and/ or in writing. Someone could also give non-verbal consent if they understand the treatment or care about to take place. Consent must be voluntary and informed and the person consenting must have the capacity to make the decision.

In the event that the patient's capacity to consent is in doubt, clinical staff must ensure that a mental capacity assessment is completed and recorded. Someone with an impairment of or a disturbance in the functioning of the mind or brain is thought to lack the mental capacity to give informed consent if they cannot do one of the following:

- Understand information about the decision
- Remember that information
- Use the information to make the decision
- Communicate the decision

#### 11.0 Fraud, Bribery and Corruption Consideration

The Trust has a zero-tolerance approach to fraud, bribery and corruption in all areas of our work and it is important that this is reflected through all policies and procedures to mitigate these risks.

Fraud relates to a dishonest representation, failure to disclose information or abuse of position in order to make a gain or cause a loss. Bribery involves the giving or receiving of gifts or money in return for improper performance. Corruption relates to dishonest or fraudulent conduct by those in power.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

02/06/2025

Status - Final

Title Health and Safety Policy

Any procedure incurring costs or fees or involving the procurement or provision of goods or service, may be susceptible to fraud, bribery, or corruption so provision should be made within the policy to safeguard against these.

If there is a potential that the policy being written, amended or updated controls a procedure for which there is a potential of fraud, bribery, or corruption to occur you should contact the Trusts Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) for assistance.



#### **Appendix 1**

### **Health and Safety Committee**

# Terms of Reference 2024/25 reviewed March 2025

Version	2024/25 v13.2
Executive Lead	Deputy CEO/Managing Director
Approving Level 1 Committee	Quality and Safe Committee
Date Approved	March 2025
Review Date	March 2025

References to "the Committee" shall mean the Health and Safety Committee

#### 1.0 Purpose of Committee

- 1.1 This Committee is constituted under the requirements of the Health and Safety at Work Act etc 1974; Section 2(7) to consult with employees on matters of health, safety and welfare at work, and in accordance with the Safety Representatives and Safety Committees Regulations 1977 and the associated Codes of Practice and Guidance.
- 1.2 To provide the organisation with oversight of the management of the workplace health, safety and welfare risk, and to ensure continuous improvement.
- 1.3 To establish and maintain standards of health, safety and welfare including EPRR in keeping with legal requirements and in accordance with the organisation policy.

To encompass all areas of health and safety, including risk assessments, safe systems of work, control of hazardous substances, provision of a safe working environment, safe plant and equipment, staff induction training, occupational health care, control of infection, first-aid, fire, security, environmental management, etc together with all appropriate training.

#### 2.0 Clinical Focus and Engagement

2.1 The monitoring of sub-groups' activity will be undertaken by the Quality and Safety Committee from the assurance reports that are received.

#### 3.0 Authority

3.1 The Group is authorised by the Quality and Safety Committee to conduct its activities in accordance with its terms of reference.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

02/06/2025

Status - Final

Title Health and Safety Policy

The Group is authorised by the Quality and Safety Committee to seek any information it requires from any employee of the Trust in order to perform its duties or contractual arrangement.

The Group is authorised to convene sub or extra-ordinary committees in response to national or local emergency situations as required, e.g. in the event of a pandemic or events of a similar nature.

#### 4.0 Membership

- 4.1 The Health and Safety Committee will be chaired by the Director with responsibility for Staff Health and Safety.
- 4.2 Deputy Chair will be the Deputy Director Safety and EPRR.
- 4.3 The membership of the Committee will comprise of the necessary persons to ensure that operational practices including robust emergency and business continuity plans in place across the Trust comply with the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and all other pertinent NHS best practice standards e.g. Health Technical Memorandum (HTM) Health Building Notes (HBN), Care Quality Commission (CQC), National EPRR Assurance process and NHSE/I Violence Prevention & Reduction Standards. The members will be able to demonstrate a clear understanding of health and safety issues and will have attended Managers/Leaders Introduction to Health and Safety One Day Course or formerly IOSH Managing Safely within a one-year time frame of becoming a committee member.
- 4.4 The committee will be made up of members who must attend regularly and meet the 75% attendance criteria and attendees who will need to attend when they have papers to present as per the Reporting Schedule when requested to do so for specific agenda items.
- 4.5 The membership of the Committee is listed in Appendix 1.
- 4.6 Only members of the Committee or their nominated representative have the right to attend meetings. However, other individuals and officers of the Trust may be invited to attend for all or part of any meeting as deemed appropriate.
- 4.7 Membership of the Committee will be reviewed and agreed annually with the Quality and Safety Committee.

#### 5.0 Secretary

5.1 Secretarial support will be provided from the Safety and EPRR Team.

#### 6.0 Quorum

6.1 The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be six members which must include at least one Staff Side Representatives and the Chairs of the

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action Groups or their representative with the appropriate authority and autonomy to make decisions.

A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers and discretions vested in or exercisable by the Committee.

Any meetings that are not quorate will continue and any decisions made will be ratified by those absent within 10 days of the meeting. A record of these agreements made to be held by the Secretary of the meeting.

#### 7.0 Frequency of Meetings

- 7.1 The Committee shall normally meet bi-monthly. The Chair may convene additional meetings of the Committee to consider business that requires urgent attention.
- 7.2 Members will be expected to attend at least three-quarters (75%) of all meetings. (Attendance will be reported in the Annual Report)
- 7.3 Additional meetings may be held at the discretion of the Chair of the Committee

#### 8.0 Agenda/Notice of Meetings

- 8.1 Notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date together with an agenda of items to be discussed shall be forwarded to each member of the Committee, and any other person required to attend.
- 8.2 Papers must be received 10 days in advance of the meeting and will be issued five working days before the meeting.
- 8.3 Papers will not be tabled without the express permission of the Chair and will not be tabled without the completion of the Trust front page template.
- 8.4 Any other Business must be notified to the Chair in advance of the meeting and cannot be tabled on the day unless considered urgent by the Chair.

#### 9.0 Record of Meetings

- 9.1 The secretary shall record the proceedings and resolutions of all Committee meetings, including the names of those present and in attendance.
- 9.2 The record of Committee meetings shall be circulated promptly to all members of the Committee and, once agreed, to the secretary of the (Parent Committee).
- 9.3 The record of Health and Safety Committee will be disseminated through the Health, Safety and Security Action Groups and be made available on the LPT intranet.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

9.4 The Health and Safety committee meeting will be recorded on teams and will be available to committee members to view after the meeting should they not be able to attend.

#### 10 Due Regard and Equality

10.1 Pay Due Regard to Equality in all of its decisions. All reports include a Due Regard question. In order to ensure that the committee fulfils its statutory obligations it will use the Public Sector Equality Duty checklist attached at Appendix 1 in its decision making processes for agenda items.

#### 11 Assurance and Escalation

- 11.1 The Committee shall produce a Triple A Highlight report for the (Parent Committee) after each meeting that will give a level of assurance for key agenda items received.
- 11.2 Provide highlight reports to the Executive Team of actions and progress with regards to the Health and Safety work plan informing of quality improvement.
- 11.3 Act as early warning mechanisms to alert the organisation to non-clinical new or emerging risks and report to the Executive Team on how these will be managed or mitigated.
- 11.4 The Committee shall make recommendations to the Executive Team as it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is needed at the earliest opportunity.
- 11.5 Produce for the Quality and Safety Committee an annual governance report on the work it has undertaken during the course of the year (and including attendance of members) in time for the Quality and Safety Committee meeting of May.
- 11.6 Determine any issues that need to be escalated to the Quality and Safety Committee or Chief Executive Officer via the Executive Team.

#### 12.0 Duties

The Committee shall:

- 12.1 To review new legislation and guidance on health, safety and security advice to the Trust Board, Quality and Safety Committee, Directorates/Enabling Departments management and staff on actions required to ensure compliance.
- 12.2 Monitor, audit and review the effectiveness of organisational Health and Safety management arrangements.
- 12.3 Promote and develop a culture of understanding and co-operation amongst all staff to ensure their health, safety and welfare whilst at work.
- 12.4 Provide and maintain a positive link with the organisation committees and the Executive Team to ensure that Directors are kept fully informed of pertinent issues.

- 12.5 To review all the interaction with regulatory authorities relating to health and safety including reports and factual information provided by inspectors of enforcing authorities appointed under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 (Health and Safety Executive, Local Authority).
- 12.6 Review non-clinical incident, trends and themes throughout the organisation (all incidents of violence and aggression), to ensure that corrective action is taken to prevent recurrence so far as is reasonably to do so
- 12.7 Review all incidents of violence and aggression to identify trends and themes to promote shared learning across the Trust through the Directorate Health, Safety and Security Action, Least Restrictive and Staff Safety and Security Groups.
- 12.8 Give strategic direction and support for environmental and non-clinical activities across the organisation.
- 12.9 Facilitate management and staff in investigating, developing and executing measures to ensure the health, safety and welfare of staff, patients and visitors.
- 12.10 Ensure that there is a structure / framework for the integration of organisation Health, Safety and Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response objectives into business plans and management performance criteria.
- 12.11 Receive, review and monitor Triple A/highlight reports and action plans from sub groups of the Health and Safety Committee.
- 12.12 Develop key performance indicators and monitor in line with the organisation Health, Safety and Security Strategy and the Emergency Preparedness, Resilience and Response Core Standards.
- 12.13 Ensure the Health, Safety and Security action plans and risks are entered onto the organisations risk register are monitored and reviewed in line with the Risk Management Strategy.
- 12.14 Disseminate information and provide feedback to appropriate groups, committees, staff and other stakeholders on environmental and non-clinical risk issues.
- 12.15 Receive Triple A/highlight report/minutes/action points from its sub-groups. Task and Finish Groups, provide support to these groups where necessary and seek assurance of compliance from them. Also to review the terms of reference of the sub-groups on an annual program.
- 12.16 Communicate exceptions and risks to the Quality and Safety Committee
- 12.17 Maintain and make available for Quality and Safety Committee an annual work plan of planned assurance activities.
- 12.18 Develop, monitor and review health and safety compliance across the whole of the This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

- Trust's business undertakings.
- 12.19 The Committee/Group/s are responsible for final ratification of a policy/ices following recommendation from the Quality and Safety Committee
- 12.20 Devise, implement, agree and approve policy within the remit of the committee prior to presentation for ratification at the Quality and Safety Committee.
- 12.21 Review and update relevant Trust policies, procedures, guidelines and codes of practices relating to the Health and Safety Committee
- 12.22 To be responsible for the Monitoring of the monitoring and compliance of policies and address any gaps
- 12.23 Develop and review health and safety management and arrangements systems. Provide and receive assurance of implementation and compliance from its sub-groups to the Quality and Safety Committee.
- 12.24 Produce an Annual report of the Trust's safety management systems to measure effectiveness, performance and provide assurance to the Trust Board of compliance.
- 12.25 Consider significant Health and Safety risks escalated from Health, Safety and Security Action groups and risk register entries.
- 12.26 Receive and provide assurance that the Central Alert Systems process is being effectively managed with timely cascading of health and safety related information and action where necessary.
- 12.27 Specific responsibility for monitoring the delivery of and evidence to support the requirements of the Care Quality Commission Standards.
- 12.28 Receive, review and action reports, guidance documents and enforcement notifications as appropriate and detailed in the Health and Safety Committee reporting schedule.

#### 13.0 Annual Review

13.1 The Committee shall, at least once a year, review its own performance, constitution and terms of reference (including membership) to ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the Quality and Safety Committee for approval.

#### 14.0 Risk Responsibility

- 14.1 The risk areas the Committee has special responsibility for will be those that fall within the remit of this Committee.
- 14.2 Where any risks need escalation, the Committee will do so through its highlight report.

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

#### **Appendix 2 - Committee Membership**

#### Members will be:

Deputy CEO/Managing Director (Chair) Deputy Director of Safety and EPRR (Deputy Chair) Associate Director of Estates and Facilities Senior HR Representative

Senior Infection Prevention and Control

Fire Safety Assurance Officer

Senior Health Safety & Security Advisor

Emergency Planning and Resilience Manager/EPRR Advisor

Learning and Development Representative

Moving and Handling Advisor Security Management Advisor

Chair of Divisional Health and Safety Action Groups

Staff Side Representative (minimum of one)

**HIS Representative** 

#### Members to attend when required will include:

Medical Devices Service Manager
Information Governance Representative
Premises Manager
Health and Safety Advisor
Senior Occupational Health Nurse
Corporate Patient Safety Team Representative

#### **Appendix 3 Public Sector Equality Duty Check List**

The Committee should assure itself that for relevant agenda items the following checklist questions have been addressed in full (and where appropriate a "Due Regard" assessment has been carried out:

1.

- (a) Who will be affected by this decision? What information is there about its likely effects on them?
- (b) Have you consulted with people who might be affected?
- (c) Could this decision affect some groups of people more than others? In particular, is it likely to have a disproportionately bad effect on some groups?
- (d) Could the proposal be amended to avoid or reduce this disproportionate effect?
- 2. Could the decision be seen as favouring a particular group or denying opportunities to another? Might it cause tensions or resentment between people? How could this be addressed?
- 3. Does this decision offer an opportunity to promote equality? Does it offer an opportunity to promote good relations between different groups of people?
- 4. Accessible environments
- (a) Physical access: will the decision affect how and when different groups of people are able to use a room or building? Has the committee taken advice on improving access for disabled people?
- (b) Access to information (E.g. Large Print, Digital/electronic, BSL, Non-English translations etc): does the decision involve communication or publication of information? Has the committee taken advice on producing accessible formats?
- 5. Decisions should be reviewed to see what effects they have actually had. Do you need to make arrangements

# **Appendix 4 Monitoring and Compliance**

Page/Section	Minimum Requirements to monitor	Method for Monitoring	Responsible Individual /Group	Where results and any Associate Action Plan will be reported to, implemented and monitored; (this will usually be via the relevant Governance Group). Frequency of monitoring
Not Applicable	Attendance on the IOSH Managing Safely or the Trusts Managers/Leaders Introduction to Health and Safety One Day Course training within a two-year frame of becoming Directorate Action Group member	Review the training activity report	Health and Safety Committee & Directorate Action Groups	Quarterly within Directorates Annually as part of the Annual Effectiveness Review
Not Applicable	Terms of Reference are reviewed annually – Committee and directorate action groups	Review the terms of reference	Health and Safet Committee & Directorate Action Groups	Annually

## **Appendix 5**

Training topic/title:	Health and Safety Arrangements within the organisation at induction and update Leaders/Managers introduction to Health and Safety			
Type of training: (see Mandatory and Role Essential Training policy for descriptions)	Role Essential			
Directorate to which the training is applicable:	Directorate of Mental Health Community Health Services Enabling Services Estates and Facilities Families, Young People, Children, Learning Disability and Autism Hosted Services			
Staff groups who require the training: (consider bank /agency/volunteers/medical)	All staff			
Governance group who has approved this training:	Health and Safety Committee Date approved: May 2025		May 2025	
Named lead or team who is responsible for this training:	Safety and EPRR Team			
Delivery mode of training: elearning/virtual/classroom/informal/adhoc	E-learning and Classroom			
Has a training plan been agreed?	Yes			
Where will completion of this training be recorded?	uLearn			
How is this training going to be quality assured and completions monitored?	Bi-monthly training report to the Health and Safety Committee			
Signed by Learning and Development Approval name and date	ALISON O'CONNECL.			

#### **Appendix 6** The NHS Constitution

- The NHS will provide a universal service for all based on clinical need, not ability to pay.
- The NHS will provide a comprehensive range of services.

Shape its services around the needs and preferences of individual patients, their families and their carers No

Respond to different needs of different sectors of the population Yes

Work continuously to improve quality services and to minimise errors No

Support and value its staff Yes

Work together with others to ensure a seamless service for patients No

Help keep people healthy and work to reduce health inequalities Yes

Respect the confidentiality of individual patients and provide open access to information about services, treatment and performance No

# **Appendix 7** Due Regard Screening Template

• •						
Section 1						
Name of activity/proposal	Arrangements in place to demonstrate					
		compliance with legal statue pertaining to the				
		Health and Safety at	Work	etc Act 1974 across		
		the Trust				
Date Screening commenced		March 2025				
Directorate / Service carrying	out the	Safety and EPRR				
assessment						
Name and role of person under	ertaking	Christian Knottt				
this Due Regard (Equality Ana	alysis)					
Give an overview of the aims,	objectives a	nd purpose of the pro	oposal:			
AIMS:						
OBJECTIVES:						
Section 2						
Protected Characteristic	If the propos	sal/s have a positive	or nega	ative impact please		
	give brief de					
Age	No	, tano				
Disability	No					
Gender reassignment	No					
Marriage & Civil Partnership	No					
Pregnancy & Maternity	No					
Race	No					
Religion and Belief	No					
Sex	No					
Sexual Orientation	No					
	No					
Other equality groups? Section 3	INO					
	ior changes i	n tarma of apple or o	anifica	noo for LDT2 For		
Does this activity propose ma						
example, is there a clear indic				-		
a major affect for people from Yes	an equality (	Jioupis: Flease <u>lick</u> i		nate bux below.		
	ctarting	No Low risk: Go to Section 4.				
High risk: Complete a full EIA	•	LOW HSK. GO to Sec	JUOI1 4.			
click here to proceed to Part B						
Section 4						
If this proposal is low risk please give evidence or justification for how you reached this decision:						
Signed by reviewer/assessor	Knott	Date	March 2025			
Sign off that this proposal is lo	ow risk and d	oes not require a full	Equali	ty Analysis		
Head of Service Signed	arty	Date	March 2025			

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.

#### Appendix 8 Data Privacy Impact Assessment Screening

Data Privacy impact assessment (DPIAs) are a tool which can help organisations identify the most effective way to comply with their data protection obligations and meet Individual's expectations of privacy.

The following screening questions will help the Trust determine if there are any privacy issues associated with the implementation of the Policy. Answering 'yes' to any of these questions is an indication that a DPIA may be a useful exercise. An explanation for the answers will assist with the determination as to whether a full DPIA is required which will require senior management support, at this stage the Head of Data Privacy must be involved.

Name of Document:	Health an	nd Safety Policy			
Completed by:	Christian	Knott			
Job title	Health an	d Safety Advis	or	Date March 2025	
Screening Questions			Yes / No	Explanatory Note	
1. Will the process described the collection of new informat This is information in excess carry out the process describ	tion about ir of what is re ed within th	No			
<ol> <li>Will the process described individuals to provide information information in excess of what the process described within</li> </ol>	ation about to t is required the docume	No			
<ol> <li>Will information about indivorganisations or people who routine access to the information process described in this document.</li> </ol>	have not pr tion as part cument?	eviously had of the	No		
<b>4.</b> Are you using information purpose it is not currently used?			No		
<b>5.</b> Does the process outlined in this document involve the use of new technology which might be perceived as being privacy intrusive? For example, the use of biometrics.			No		
<b>6.</b> Will the process outlined in this document result in decisions being made or action taken against individuals in ways which can have a significant impact on them?			No		
7. As part of the process outlined in this document, is the information about individuals of a kind particularly likely to raise privacy concerns or expectations? For examples, health records, criminal records or other information that people would consider to be particularly private.			No		
8. Will the process require yo ways which they may find int		No			
If the answer to any of these questions is 'Yes' please contact the Data Privacy Team via <a href="mailto:Lpt-dataprivacy@nhs.net">Lpt-dataprivacy@nhs.net</a> In this case, ratification of a procedural document will not take place until review by the Head of Data Privacy.					
Data Privacy approval nam	e:				
Date of approval					

Acknowledgement: This is based on the work of Princess Alexandra Hospital NHS Trust

This is a controlled document. Whilst this document may be printed, the electronic version posted on the intranet is the controlled copy. Any printed copies of this document are not controlled. As a controlled document, this document should not be saved onto local or network drives but should always be accessed from the Trust Website.